
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Ricky Clarke, Democratic Services 
Officer on 01432 261885 or e-mail rclarke@herefordshire.gov.uk in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Planning Committee 
 

 

Date: Wednesday 27 April 2011 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Ricky Clarke, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01432 261885 
Email: rclarke@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s) 
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial.  Councillors have to decide 
first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion.  They will then have to 
decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial. 

  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.  
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council.  Councillors 
will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an organisation that they 
or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area.  If they do have a personal 
interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.   

 

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor.  What Councillors have 
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public – if he or she knew all the facts – would think 
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it.  If a Councillor 
has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is.  A Councillor who has declared a 
prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, but only in 
circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak.  In such 
circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting and on 
the same terms.  However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these circumstances must 
leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken. 
 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Planning 
Committee 
  
Membership  
  

Chairman Councillor TW Hunt 
Vice-Chairman Councillor RV Stockton 
  

Councillor ACR Chappell  
Councillor PGH Cutter  
Councillor H Davies  
Councillor GFM Dawe  
Councillor DW Greenow  
Councillor KS Guthrie  
Councillor JW Hope MBE  
Councillor B Hunt  
Councillor RC Hunt  
Councillor G Lucas  
Councillor RI Matthews  
Councillor JE Pemberton  
Councillor AP Taylor  
Councillor DC Taylor  
Councillor WJ Walling  
Councillor PJ Watts  
Councillor JD Woodward  
  

 
  

 
 

   



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  27 APRIL 2011 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting 

in place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. MINUTES   1 - 20  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meetings held on 23 March 2011 

and 6 April 2011. 
 

   
5. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS     
   
 To receive any announcements from the Chairman.  
   
6. APPEALS   21 - 22  
   
 To be noted.  
   
7. DMN/110531/FH - BRYNCURL, PEMBRIDGE, LEOMINSTER, 

HEREFORDSHIRE, HR6 9HY    
23 - 26  

•   
8. DMS/110101/F - LAND REAR OF GREYTREE LODGE, SECOND AVENUE, 

ROSS ON WYE, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR9 7HT    
27 - 34  

•   
9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING     
   
 Date of next site inspection - 14 June 2011 

 
Date of next meeting - 15 June 2011 

 

   





The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 
 
 

Public Transport Links 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs approximately 

every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the 
roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction with 
Old Eign Hill.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 

 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located in the 
circular car park at the front of the building.  A check will be 
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated 
the building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the 
exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to 
collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer 
waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). 
Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel 
environmental label 

 



AGENDA ITEM 4

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



 

 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from the relevant case officer 
 
 

MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 27 APRIL 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: APPEALS 

 
 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 
Countywide  

Purpose 
To note the progress in respect of the following appeals. 

Key Decision 
This is not a key decision  
 

Recommendation 

That the report be noted 

APPEALS RECEIVED 
 
Application No. DMN/103364/F     

• The appeal was received on 8 April 2011 
• The appeal is made under Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a 

refusal to grant planning permission 
• The appeal is brought by Mr J Parry 
• The site is located at Land South of 5 Stonehill Drive, Bromyard, Herefordshire, HR7 4BE 
• The development proposed is a proposed 3 bedroom bungalow with garage. 
• The appeal is to be heard by Written Representations 
 

Case Officer: Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
 

APPEALS DETERMINED 
 
Application No. DMS/101943/O  

• The appeal was received on 6 December 2010 
• The appeal was made under Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a 

refusal to grant planning permission 
• The appeal was brought by Mrs P Sanderson 
• The site is located at 253 Whitecross Road, Hereford, Herefordshire, HR4 0LT 
• The application dated 12 July 2010  was refused on 4 November 2010 
• The development proposed was Proposed detached dwelling. 

AGENDA ITEM 6

21



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from the relevant case officer 
 
 

• The main issues are whether the proposal would have a harmful effect on the character and 
appearance of the surrounding area; and the effect of the proposal on the living conditions of 
adjoining occupiers in relation to daylight, sunlight and whether there would be any visual intrusion 

 

Decision:   The application was refused under delegated powers on 4 November 2010. 
  The appeal was Dismissed on 22 March 2011. 
 

Case Officer:  Mr D Dugdale on 01432 261566 
 

Application No. DMSW/092489/O  

• The appeal was received on 21 December 2010 
• The appeal was made under Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a 

refusal to grant planning permission 
• The appeal was brought by Mr Mark Manning 
• The site is located at Land at Clay Pitts, Pontrilas, Hereford, HR2 0BW 
• The application dated 1 October 2009 was refused on 7 June 2010 
• The development proposed was outline planning for one agricultural workers dwelling. 
• The main issue is whether there is an agricultural justification for the proposed dwelling in the 

countryside in terms of functional need and meeting the necessary financial test. 
 

Decision:  The planning application was refused under delegated powers on 7 June 2010. 
The appeal was Allowed on 30 March 2011. 

 

Case Officer:  Mr A Prior on 01432 261932 
 

Application No. DMNE/092262/F  

• The appeal was received on 4 November 2010 
• The appeal was made under Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a 

refusal to grant planning permission 
• The appeal was brought by Mr Michael Freeman 
• The site is located at Freeman's Paddock, Bromtrees Hall, Bishop's Frome, Herefordshire, WR6 

5BY 
• The application dated 24 August 2009 was refused on 12 May 2010 
• The development proposed was the change of use of land from agricultural to farmily travellers 

site, including stationing of two mobile homes and two touring caravans, construction of barn 
(retrospective) and new access. 

• The main issues are: 
i) The effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the surrounding 

countryside; 
ii) Whether or not the site is reasonably located in relation to services and facilities; and  
iii) Any other matters in support of the proposal including, the general need for and 

provision of gypsy and traveller sites in the area and the personal needs and 
accommodation options of the appellant and his family and their personal 
circumstances.  

 

Decision:   The application was refused by Committee, contrary to Officer recommendation, on 
12 May 2010. 
The appeal was Allowed on 28 March 2011. 
An application for the award of costs, made by the appellant against the Council, was 
Allowed. 

 

Case Officer:  Mr C Brace on 01432 261795 
 

If members wish to see the full text of decision letters copies can be provided. 

22



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr P Mullineux on 01432 261808 
PF2 
 

MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 27 APRIL 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: DMN/110531/FH - PROPOSED TWO STOREY 
EXTENSION AT BRYNCURL, PEMBRIDGE, 
LEOMINSTER, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR6 9HY. 

FOR: MR HARDY PER MR STEPHEN POTTER, 
POMONA OFFICE, KINGS ACRE ROAD, 
HEREFORD, HR4 0SN. 

 
Date Received: 2 March 2011 Ward: Pembridge and 

Lyonshall with Titley 
Grid Ref: 338270,258312 

Expiry Date: 3 May 2011  
Local Members: Councillor RJ Phillips  
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1      The site comprises of a semi-detached two-storey dwelling of external brick and render 

construction under a tiled roof, which is located in open countryside some 0.5km west of the 
village of Pembridge, within the north-western corner of its designated Conservation Area.  

 
1.2      The proposal is for a two-storey extension onto the eastern side elevation of the dwelling to    

provide additional and improved domestic accommodation for occupants of the property, 
mainly in the form of a ground-floor sitting room/study area and utility room and a bedroom 
and bathroom on the first floor.  

 
1.3   The applicant holds a politically restricted post with the Council. 
 
2. Policies  
 
2.1 Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007 
 

S1 - Sustainable Development 
S2 - Development Requirements 
DR1 - Design 
DR2 - Land Use and Activity 
DR3 - Movement 
DR4 - Environment 
H18 - Alterations and Extensions 
LA2 - Landscape Character and Areas Least Resilient to Change 
HBA6 - New Development Within Conservation Areas 
CF2 - Foul Drainage 

  
3. Planning History 
 
3.1       94/0256/F – Alterations to existing dwelling to include a two –story extension to form a kitchen 

and bedroom. Approved 21 November 1994.  

AGENDA ITEM 7

23



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr P Mullineux on 01432 261808 
PF2 
 

4. Consultation Summary 
 
 Statutory Consultees 
 
4.1 None required. 

 
Internal Consultees 
 

4.2 The Transportation Manager raises no objections subject to a condition requiring car parking 
space for 3 cars. 

 
4.3 The Conservation Manager has responded indicating that the dwelling is one of a group of  

distinctive  estate buildings associated with the listed Byletts House. The dwelling has a rare 
distinguished steep roof and a single-storey extension would be preferred in order to preserve 
the existing character. 

 
4.4 The Public Rights of Way Manager raises no objections. 
 
5. Representations 
 
5.1 Pembridge Parish Council – no response received at time of writing report.  
 
6. Officer’s Appraisal 
 
6.1 The proposal is for a two-storey extension onto the side elevation of a semi-detached two-

storey dwelling located in open countryside, outside the village of Pembridge on land 
designated as part of the Pembridge Conservation Area.   

 
6.2   The proposed extension would appear subservient to the existing dwelling on site. The 

Conservation   Manager has indicated that a single-storey extension would be preferred to that 
of a two-storey extension. 

 
6.3  The dwelling is unusual in that it consists of very steep sided roofs. The existing dwelling 

having a footprint of approximately 76 square metres.  The proposed extension has a footprint 
of approximately 31.5 square metres (measured externally) and is for a two storey extension 
of similar design and scale to that of the existing dwelling on site. 

 
6.4  The applicant wishes to increase the domestic accommodation for family needs, by means of 

an additional ground floor daytime room, and a first floor bathroom and bedroom.  Officers 
consider that a single-storey extension with the amount of floor space as required would be 
disproportionately out of character with the existing dwelling on site, and therefore a suitably 
scaled two-storey extension is preferred.  As acknowledged earlier, the proposal is subservient 
to the existing dwelling on site, and is of a scale and design that is considered acceptable and 
basically in accordance with criteria of Policy H18: Alterations and extensions, of the Unitary 
Development Plan.  The adjoining dwelling has had a two-storey extension attached to its side 
elevation and the Conservation Manager acknowledges that this flat roof extension does 
undermine the building’s historic value to some extent.  It is considered the proposal subject to 
this application is more in keeping with the built character of the structure.  There should be no 
harm to the character or appearance of the Conservation Areas and the proposal complies to 
Policy HBA6 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan.  

 
6.5 As indicated earlier the dwelling subject to this application had planning permission for a two-

storey side extension approved on 21st November 1994. This extension was not implemented 
and was for an extension onto the same elevation of the dwelling, as that of the current 
application.  

 

24



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr P Mullineux on 01432 261808 
PF2 
 

6.6  The Transportation Manager whilst not raising any objections to the proposal, recommends a 
condition to be attached to any approval notice issued, requiring parking space for three cars 
on site.  This is considered necessary due to the dwelling already having three bedrooms and 
a fourth bedroom triggering the need for an additional car parking space.  It is considered that 
there is sufficient space within the dwelling’s domestic curtilage for the parking of three 
vehicles.  It is recommended that the suggested condition be attached to an approval notice 
subsequently issued. 

 
6.7 In conclusion the proposed development is considered acceptable in scale and design and 

therefore generally in accordance with relevant local plan policies as outlined in this report.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. A01 - Time limit for commencement (full permission) 

  
2. B01 - Development in accordance with the approved plans 

 
3. C02 - Matching external materials (extension) 

 
4. The rooflights to be installed in to the roofing elevations as indicated on plan 

number 854.03 will be ‘Conservation rooflights' which will be flush with the roof 
line. 
 
Reason:  In order to protect the character of the surrounding Conservation Area 
and to comply with Policy HBA6 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan. 
 

5. CAI - Parking 
 

 
INFORMATIVES: 
 
1. HN28 - Highways Design Guide and Specification 

 
 
 
 
 
Decision:  ..............................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes:  ..................................................................................................................................................  
 
 ..............................................................................................................................................................  
 
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 

25



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr P Mullineux on 01432 261808 
PF2 
 

 
 
 

 
This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 

  
APPLICATION NO:  DMN/110531/FH   
 
SITE ADDRESS :  BRYNCURL, PEMBRIDGE, LEOMINSTER, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR6 9HY 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised 
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 

 

26



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr D Thomas on 01432 261974 
PF2 
 

MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 27 APRIL 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: DMS/110101/F - PROPOSED ERECTION OF 
BUNGALOW AND ACCESS DRIVE AT LAND REAR 
OF GREYTREE LODGE, SECOND AVENUE, ROSS 
ON WYE, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR9 7HT. 

For: Mr White per Mr Paul Smith, 12 Castle Street, 
Hereford, Herefordshire, HR1 2NL. 

 

 
Date Received: 17 January 2011 Ward: Ross-on-Wye West Grid Ref: 359888,225201 
Expiry Date: 23 March 2011  
Local Members: Councillors  CM Bartrum  and G Lucas 
 
1.  Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1   The site is part of the garden of existing residential development.  The proposed bungalow 

would be sited between the original dwelling at Greytree Lodge and Sarnia, a dormer 
bungalow sited to the rear of the plot, which was allowed on appeal in 2008.  It would be 
accessed by the drive along the side of Greytree Lodge, which serves the dormer bungalow.  
There is a 2metre high boundary hedge along the southern side of the access drive.  There 
are several bungalows on the adjoining land the other side of the boundary to the drive.  
These have modest rear gardens and their rear elevations face towards the drive. 

 
1.2  The site is located in an established residential area and the Wye Valley Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty. 
 

1.3  This application proposes an “L-shaped” bungalow that will accommodate living room and 
kitchen, 2 bedrooms, wet room and a bathroom, under a hipped roof.  A passing place is 
shown to be constructed alongside the southern side of the access drive which is to be 
surfaced with asphalt.  An open sided car port for the parking of 2 cars is also proposed. 

  
2. Policies  
 
2.1 Planning Policy Statements 
 
 PPS1  -  Delivering Sustainable Development 
 PPS3  -  Housing 
 
2.2 Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 
 

S1 - Sustainable development 
S2 - Development requirements 
S3  - Housing 
DR1 - Design 

AGENDA ITEM 8

27



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr D Thomas on 01432 261974 
PF2 
 

 

   
3.  Planning History 
 
  SE2000/0444/F: Erection of dormer bungalow to rear of Greytree Lodge:  Deemed withdrawn. 
 
  SE2000/0446/F:  Erection of bungalow to full disabled standards:  Refused 2.8.2000. 
 

SE01/0283/F:  Erection of bungalow specifically designed to accommodate person with severe 
mobility restrictions:  Refused 2.4.2001. 

 
SE2002/1307/F:  Erection of bungalow specifically designed to accommodate person with 
severe mobility restrictions.  Refused 24.6.2002. 

 
  SE2003/0662/F:  Erection of three bungalows for the disabled:  Refused 29.4.2003. 
 
  DCSE2007/2822/F:  Erection of one dormer bungalow:  Refused 25.1.2008.  Appeal allowed. 
 
  DCSE2009/0960/F:  Erection of one bungalow and access drive:  Refused 30.6.2009 
 

DMSE/091700/F: Erection of bungalow and access drive.  Refused 29.9.2009.  Appeal 
dismissed 26.1.2010. 

 
4.  Consultation Summary 
 

Statutory Consultations 
 

Welsh Water has no objection subject to conditions.  
 

Internal Consultees 
 

Traffic Manager recommends refusal in that the access does not show the visibility splays 
required - on each side of a 2metre access set back with 45degree visibility splays.   

 
Environmental Protection Manager has no objection. 

 
5.  Representations 
 
5.1  Ross Rural Parish Council has no objection. 
 
5.2  14 objections have been received.  In summary it is said: 
 

• A dwelling in this position will erode our privacy; 
• Further strain on drains and sewerage; 
• Additional traffic onto narrow avenue would detrimental to the area; 
• There is not enough space for another dwelling especially if its similar to Mr White’s 

existing bungalow; 
• Previously refused; no room, no outlook and noise; 

DR2 -   Land use and activity 
DR3 -   Movement 
H1 - Hereford and the market towns: settlement boundaries and established 

residential area 
H13 - Sustainable residential design 
H15 - Density 
H16 - Car parking 
LA1 - Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

28



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr D Thomas on 01432 261974 
PF2 
 

• Intrusive noise nuisance is not only during day time but through night time period as well; 
• Access to the site is also inadequate; 
• Second Avenue is narrow and congested.  This development would cause further 

congestion; 
• This will lead to precedent for further development in Greytree; 
• The noise measurement instruments used by the Noise Consultant are out of calibration; 

 
5.3   A Planning Statement has been submitted with the application.  In summary it is said: 
 

• Following refusal of the previous application, the Planning Inspector rejected the Council’s 
case that the quantum of garden space to be dedicated to the new dwelling was 
inadequate; 

• The Inspectors decision did acknowledge the addition of a second dwelling would increase 
the number of vehicles and related activity on the drive to the detriment of neighbours; 

• A Noise Assessment has been commissioned to consider the impact of noise on the 
amenity of neighbours; 

• The ambient noise climate around the site is dominated by continuous, distant road traffic 
noise from the A40 with other noise from vehicles along Greytree; 

• The assessment accepts that the noise of the passage of cars is likely to be audible in the 
gardens of adjoining bungalows, however it would be lower than existing noise such as 
passing aircraft and lawnmowers; 

• The impact of the increased use of the drive is likely to be very low; 
• Surfacing the track with tarmac and erection of a 6ft high fence would reduce car noise; 
• The principle of development accords with adopted planning policy; 
• It has been demonstrated that additional traffic and pedestrian movements would be within 

acceptable limits during the night time. 
 
In response to comments made the noise consultant states: 
 
• Night-time noise - The report states in paragraph 3.6 that road traffic noise is, on average, 

8 dBA lower at night than in the day.  However, I have assessed the impact of an 
intermittent noise at night by the sleep disturbance criterion of the WHO and their 
recommended internal maximum noise level (LAmaxF) in a bedroom has been assessed 
and this does not depend on the background noise level which is why night time 
background noise levels are not needed. 

• The report gives the serial numbers of the noise meters used but it does not say which 
meter was at which location.  This information can be supplied but makes no difference to 
the assessment. 

• The instruments used were not out of calibration. BS4142:1997 "Method for Rating 
Industrial Noise Affecting Mixed Residential and Industrial Areas" requires that 
instrumentation be calibrated "at certain time intervals, e.g. every two years".  The most 
exacting requirements for calibration come in the assessment of the Permitted Noise Level 
under the Noise Act 1996 (as amended).  Exceedance of the Permitted Noise Level (at 
night) can constitute an offence.  The Permitted Level of Noise (England) Directions 2008 
require that noise instrumentation be calibrated at intervals of no longer than 24 months 
unless the instrument was first used after 28 February 2008 in which case the interval is 
not greater than 12 months. 

• This is the most exacting standard because it is a legal requirement.  The instruments 
were first used before 2008 in which case a 24 month interval would not be inappropriate. 
Notwithstanding this, my instruments are calibrated at roughly 12 month intervals as it is 
not possible to make the interval exactly 12 months.  

 
5.4 The full text of these letters can be inspected at Planning Services, Garrick House, Widemarsh 

Street, Hereford and prior to the Committee meeting. 
 

29



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr D Thomas on 01432 261974 
PF2 
 

6. Officer’s Appraisal 
 
6.1  The site is located within an established residential area.  Policy H1 permits, subject to 

compliance with other policies, the provision of new residential development within the market 
towns.  This notwithstanding, several applications for the  erection of single bungalows on 
land to the rear of Greytree Lodge have been refused owing in the main to the impact that 
development would have upon the amenity of existing dwellings located in close proximity to 
the north and south of the site, together with the impact that the increased number of vehicles 
would have upon on-street parking on a narrow and congested road system.  Most recently, 
and of most direct relevance, application DCSE0009/1700/F was refused for the following 
reasons: 

 
1. The erection of a dwelling in this location would result in an increase in vehicular and 

pedestrian movements in close proximity to the rear, private gardens of existing dwellings.  
In addition to the activity already associated with the existing flats at Greytree Lodge and 
the approved dormer bungalow, the resultant level of activity would be in excess of what 
could reasonably be associated with a typical residential curtilage.  Although the Council 
acknowledges the presence of several examples of tandem development within the 
locality, the development is considered to harm the amenity of adjoining residents in a 
manner contrary to policies DR2 and H13 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 
2007. 

 
2. By virtue of a lack of useable outdoor amenity space, enclosure of the site and absence of 

an outlook, the proposal would not provide for acceptable levels of residential amenity 
within the scheme.  The proposal is thus contrary to Policy H13 of the Herefordshire 
Unitary Development Plan 2007. 

 
A subsequent appeal against this decision was dismissed when the Inspector concluded that a 
bungalow in this location would not have an adverse impact on the area which is characterised 
by a mix of dwelling types.  However, traffic noise together with the slamming of car doors, 
raised voices and other associated noise could have an adverse impact on the amenity of 
neighbours. 

 
6.2  Notwithstanding the planning history of the site, policies S1, S2 and S3 are strategic policies 

referring to sustainable development, development requirements and housing.  They lay the 
foundations and set the guiding principles for the detailed policies within the UDP.   

 
6.3   Policy H1 states that residential development within the market towns will be permitted within 

these areas where compatible with the housing design and other policies of the Plan.  Policy 
H13 sets out the 11 criteria that residential development will be expected to meet, and several 
of these are reinforced by policies DR1, DR2 and DR3. 

 
6.4  Policy H15 refers to the densities that new residential proposals will be expected to provide.  

H16 seeks to ensure that adequate provision is made for car parking, with due consideration 
given to the site location, type of housing to be provided, types of household likely to occupy 
the development and the availability of public transport. 

 
6.5  LA1 deals with development proposals within the AONB.  In this case, the AONB washes over 

the whole of the built up area of Ross-on-Wye.  In this context, the scale of development 
proposed is not considered to be prejudicial to the wider objectives of the policy and little 
weight is attached to the presence of the designation in this case. 

 
6.6.  The application proposes a modest bungalow with limited garden space.  However, the 

submitted plans show a patio area outside the living room, screened by hedging.  This is 
considered to be a reasonable provision for amenity space.  The outlook from windows would 
largely be towards hedges but these are sufficiently distant from windows to provide 

30



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr D Thomas on 01432 261974 
PF2 
 

reasonable daylight.  As such it is not considered the sense of enclosure would be so 
oppressive to recommend refusal of the application.  Accordingly, it is considered the proposal 
would provide reasonable living conditions for future occupiers.  The proposal provides an 
acceptable level of residential amenity so as to comply with Policy H13.   

 
6.7  In the Inspectors decision letter that dismissed the appeal for a bungalow on this site, the 

Inspector said a bungalow here would substantially increase the number of vehicles and 
related activity; slamming of doors, raised voices and other noise associated with 
manoeuvring of vehicles would be particularly intrusive and disturbing especially late at night.  
This application has been submitted with an Environmental Noise Assessment that gives 
consideration to noise nuisance and disturbance to neighbours.  The Assessment 
acknowledges ambient noise climate of the area around the proposed site is dominated by 
continuous distant road traffic from the A40 dual carriageway.  However noise is affected by 
wind speed and direction and will differ from day to day depending on the weather.   

 
6.8  The Assessment concludes there will be some noise attenuation afforded by the existing 

boundary hedge.  The Assessment also comments, notwithstanding the erection of a 
boundary timber fence along the southern side of the access drive, noise from the passage of 
cars is still likely to be audible in the gardens of adjoining bungalows.  Noise during the night, 
noise levels inside bedrooms is of primary concern.  However, the Assessment comments that 
overall impact of noise from vehicles movements will be low.  The Environmental Protection 
Manager has been consulted on the proposal and given consideration to the Noise 
Assessment and has raised no objection.  Consequently, it is considered a dwelling in this 
location and associated vehicle movements will not give rise to the loss of residential amenity. 

 
6.9  Insofar as parking and access is concerned, the sub-division of Greytree Lodge into 3 

individual self-contained flats has been granted by two planning permissions.  The dormer 
bungalow and this site is served by the same access.  While, the Traffic Manager is concerned 
the access drive does not show the required visibility splays, the submitted plan does show a 
2metre set back entrance with 45degree visibility splays that cross over the pavement either 
side of the entrance.  As such it is considered adequate visibility is available.  Insofar as 
additional vehicles likely to be generated by the proposal is concerned it is considered these 
would not be prejudicial to users of the adjoining road network so as not to be in the interests 
of highway safety.  In this regard that the scheme incorporates a passing place and this could 
be required, by the imposition of an appropriate planning condition, to be constructed prior to 
the occupation of the dwelling and thereafter retained. 

 
6.10  In conclusion, it is considered the application resolves the primary concern of the Inspector; 

impact of traffic noise on the amenity of neighbours. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of one year 

from the date of this permission. 
 
 
 
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) (b) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and to reflect the decision of the local planning 
authority on 4th March, 2009 to suspend (effective from 1 April, 2009) the 
requirements of the Authority's Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning 
Document (February 2008) in relation to all employment developments falling within 
Classes B1, B2 and B8 of the Town and Country Planning Use Classes Order 1987 
as amended by the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) 

31



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr D Thomas on 01432 261974 
PF2 
 

(England) Order 2005, the employment element of any mixed use development and 
residential developments of five dwellings or less. 
  

2. B01 Development in accordance with the approved plans 
 

3. C01 Samples of external materials 
 

4. H12 Parking and turning - single house 
 

5. Prior to the occupation of the dwelling herby permitted the driveway shall be 
surfaced in accordance with details to be submitted and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority and thereafter maintained 
 

6. Prior to the occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted the passing place as 
shown on drawing number 5104:03A shall be constructed in accordance with 
details to be submitted and approved in writing by the local planning authority and 
shall remain available for this purpose.  
 

7. F14 Removal of permitted development rights 
 

8. G02 Retention of trees and hedgerows 
 

9. L01 Foul/surface water drainage 
 

10. L02 No surface water to connect to public system 
 

11. L03 No drainage run-off to public system 
 

12. G09 Details of Boundary treatments 
 

 
Informatives: 
 
1. N15 Reason(s) for the Grant of PP/LBC/CAC 

 
2. W02 Welsh Water rights of access 

 
 
 
Decision:  ..............................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes:  ..................................................................................................................................................  
 
 ..............................................................................................................................................................  
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 

32



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr D Thomas on 01432 261974 
PF2 
 

 

 
 
 

This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 
  
APPLICATION NO:  DMS/110101/F   
 
SITE ADDRESS :  LAND REAR OF GREYTREE LODGE, SECOND AVENUE, ROSS ON WYE, 
HEREFORDSHIRE 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised 
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 

 

33



34


	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	Minutes Public Pack, 06/04/2011 Planning Committee

	6 APPEALS
	7 DMN/110531/FH - Bryncurl, Pembridge, Leominster, Herefordshire, HR6 9HY
	8 DMS/110101/F - Land Rear of Greytree Lodge, Second Avenue, Ross on Wye, Herefordshire, HR9 7HT

